ORISINAL

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CHARLES JOSEPH I Appellant.

Supreme Court No. 69049

vs. STATE OF NEVADA Respondent.

District Court No. \_\_\_\_\_\_

DEC 1 5 2015

DEPUTY CLERK

INDEMAN

## **APPELLANT'S INFORMAL BRIEF**

<u>INSTRUCTIONS</u>: If you are an appellant proceeding pro se (without an attorney) in the Nevada Supreme Court, you must file either (1) a brief that complies with Nevada Rule of Appellate Procedure (NRAP) 28(a), or (2) a completed copy of this informal brief form, see NRAP 28(k), with the Nevada Supreme Court on or before the due date, see NRAP 31. In civil appeals, if you do not file one of these documents by the due date, the Nevada Supreme Court may dismiss your appeal. In postconviction criminal appeals, if you do not file one of these documents by the due date, the Nevada Supreme Court or Nevada Court of Appeals may decide your appeal on the record without briefing.

<u>HOW TO FILL OUT THIS FORM</u>: This form must be typed, unless you are incarcerated, in which case it must be clearly handwritten. You do not need to refer to legal authority or the district court record. If you are completing your brief on this form, write only in the space allowed on the form. **Additional pages and attachments are not allowed.** If typing an informal brief, you may either use the lined paper contained in this form or an equivalent number of pages of your own paper. Your brief will be stricken if you fail to follow the directions in this form and the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.

WHERE TO FILE THE BRIEF: You may file your brief in person or by mail.

To file your brief in person: Bring the brief to the Clerk's Office at To file your brief in person: Bring the brief to the Clerk's Office at the Supreme Court of Nevada, 201 South Carson Street, Carson Only, Nevada, or at the Regional Justice Center Clerk's Office DEC 14 2015 (Drop Box), 200 Lewis Street, 17th Floor, Las Vegas, Nevada. You can file your brief Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 TRACLERK OF SUPREME CONTAN. CLERK OF SUPREME CONTAN. DEPUTY CLERK

15-38/62

1

<u>To file your brief by mail</u>: Mail the brief to the Clerk of the Supreme Court of Nevada, 201 South Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada 89701. Your brief must be postmarked on or before the due date.

You must file the original brief and 1 copy with the clerk of the Nevada Supreme Court. If you want the clerk to return a file-stamped copy of your brief, you must file the original form and 2 copies and include a selfaddressed, stamped envelope. Documents cannot be faxed or emailed to the Supreme Court Clerk's Office.

Copies of the brief must be mailed or delivered to the other parties to this appeal or to the parties' attorneys, if they have attorneys. You must also include a proper certificate of service or complete the certificate that is attached to the informal brief form.

<u>CAUTION</u>: Pro se parties are prohibited from representing other parties. A pro se party may not complete a brief on behalf of other parties. Pro se parties may collaborate on their briefs, however, provided that if one brief is submitted on behalf of multiple pro se parties, each party must sign and date the brief to confirm that he or she has participated in the preparation of the brief and, by his or her signature, joins in the arguments and representations contained therein.

2

Judgment or Order You Are Appealing. List the judgment or order that you are appealing from and the date that the judgment or order was filed in the district court.

Filed Date	Name of Judgment or Order	
10/7/2015	ORSER SENSING MOTION TO AMENIS JUDGMENT OF	
	CONVIETOR TO COMPRET WITH NRS 176.105	
	CUNVILIEN TO CUMPER WITH TURS THE. TO	

Notice of Appeal. Give the date you filed your notice of appeal in the district court: <u>Ocroser 20, 2015</u>

**Related Cases.** List all other court cases related to this case. Provide the case number, title of the case and name of the court where the case was filed.

Case No.	Case Title	Name of Court

**Pro Bono Counsel.** Would you be interested in having pro bono counsel assigned to represent you in this appeal?

**NOTE:** If the court determines that your case may be appropriate for having pro bono counsel assigned, an appropriate order will be entered. Assignment of pro bono counsel is not automatic.

**Statement of Facts.** Explain the facts of your case. (Your answer must be provided in the space allowed.)

ON AUGUST 25, 2015, APPEllANT Files A MOTION IN THE SECONS JUDIEIAL STRICT LOURT, WASHOF LOUNTY, TITLES "DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO AMERIA JUDGMENT OF LONVICTION OF 5/17/1994 To Comport WITH NRS 176. 105." APPEllANT'S MOTION STEMS FROM THE STATUTORY PROVISIONS OF NES 176.105(1) a-d. JUDGMENT IN CRIMINAL ACTION, WHICH WERE OMISSIONS IN THE ORIGINAL LIDEMENT OF CONVICTION. THE LUDEMENT

**Informal Brief Form October 2015** 

REVERAL ERRORS IN THE APPEllANT'S WRITTER JUSEMENT. A Review of THE RECORD JUXTA POSITION TO THE SUDEMENT REVERS SEVERAL ERROLS. THE REQUIRED CONTENTS ALE SET FORTH BY STATUTE, AND ARE Relies UPAN BY OTHER LOURTS AND ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCIES love AFRER THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE LISTRICT COURT HAVE PASSO

APPENDANT SOUGHT TO AMERIO THE JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION TO HAVE CRITICALAND ACCURATE INFORMATION IN THIS ESSENTIAL LOCA-MENT, WHICH INICHISED: A PRE LANT'S PLEA, VERDICT(S) OF THE FINGINES, ADJUDICATION, SENTENCE IMPOSED BY STATUTE WITH MINIMUM TERMS, RESTITUTION AMOUNT SETINGS, AND REFERENCES STATUTES OF SENTENCES NOT REFERENCES TO SETEMBLE FUTURE PAROLE ELIGIBILITY. LIFE-TIME SUPERVISION IS NOT APPLICABLE TO APPLICABLE TO APPLICATION.

NEITHER THE NEVADA SEPARTMENT OF GORRECTIONS (NILOE), NOL THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PAROLE COMMISSIONERS (NSBAC) CAN Gleen A PAROLE ELIGIBILITY DATE FROM ANY OF APPEllant'S IMPOSED COUNTS IN THE WRITTEN JUDGMENT.

APPEllANT'S CONTENTIONS SET FORTH IN HIS MOTION FILED IN THE SISTERT COURT ARE SUPPORTED BY THE STATUTORY PROVISIONS OF THE MANDATORY PANEMAGE IN NES 176.105.

Several weeks AFTER THE FILLE AND SERVICE OF THE MOTION WHEN THE REPONDENTS. APPEllant Files AND SERVES HIS "REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION." No RESTONISIVE PLEADING WAS FILES BY THE RESTONDENTS, IN WHEN APPEllant Sought To Have TREATED AS MELITORIOUS AND A CONSENT TO GRANT, SEATENDER 11, 2015. ON OCTOBER 7, 2015, THE SISTRICT COURT ELRONIE WISH THEATED

**Statement of District Court Error.** Explain why you believe the district court was wrong. Also state what action you want the Nevada Supreme Court to take. (Your answer must be provided in the space allowed).

THE DISTRICT COURT ERRONEOUSLY ADDRESSED THE TRUE MERITS AND CONTENTIONS OF APPEllANT'S NOTION TO AMENS JUDSMENT OF LONVIDION TO COMPORT WITH THE LEGAL STANDARDS OF NIRS 176. 105. ETEMBEL 1, 2015, THIS LOURT ENTELED ORSEL FOR THE TRANSMISSION letores Below, FINIDING THAT 77/00 KELORS WAS WARRANTED 2015, ANDLIN AND APAENDO WITH SUPPORTING EGA/ => EXHIBITS FORMS THE BASIS SSIENMENTOF MANSATORY PANTERSE, WHICH CLARKY KIRS ITE 1051 ONTAINS ROVIDES:

1. IF A DEFENSANT IS FAMILS GUI by AND IS SENTENDES AS PROVIDED By /An, The Susaneur of Convictor Must Ses Form: (a) THE Plan; (b) THE VORSIE OF FURNE. (C) THE AD SUBCATION AND SEMERICE ... TERM OF IMALIES. MENT ... Reselence To The STATUTE ... To Sevenince Elisising. IF Applicaster ...; (D) EXACT AMOUNT OF CREAT GRANTED ... See "Warrer V. O'Source 11," 71 Nov. The 524 P.2d 1376 (1978). THE WORS "MUST" IS OFERATIVE AND MAKES THE STATUTE'S USE MANDATOLY TANELIALE: See Also, "Expere Sela" 25 Nov. 346, 60 P. 217 (Nev. 1900). 1. APPellain's Jusement is fuescant TO A Siney TRAN. THE Juse-MENT Los Min Reterence A Guily VERSIET UPON A JUNY TRIAL, AS APEllan MAINTAINES HIS MINDEAUE LINGE THE Alles And .... 2. LIRS 176.033 (1) (b) REGUIRES THAT A SEATENCE OF IMPRISON -MERT INCLUSE A MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM TERM FOR FEDNICES. None OF THE COULTS, IN WHEN APPEllANT WAS SENTENCES INCLUSE A Milimum Term. The Seanences inteses States "THAT He BE Hunsted by Implison ment in me Nermon State Prison To A TELM or live with the fessibility of Parste ... " Appellant's Justiment, likense, is Silent AS TO A CONSECUTIVE OR LONGURGEST TELM ON Benus Applies To Canit I. The Just ment of Conviction Applies A CONCURRENT OR CONSECUTIVE TERMS, ASTO All THE OTHER Renaments Counts. Some HRS 176. 105(1) 3. NETTHER THE NUOL OF NSBPE ARE ABLE TO DESCRIME APRELANT'S PARALE CLIEVELITY TERMS ON ANY OF APPEllANT'S Canos. AT THE TIME OF APPEllant'S SERVENCINE IN 1994, THE MINIMUM

Tam For THE AlleGATIONS CHANGES REFLECTED A MINIMUM PARTE Elissibility Term of Frie Yorks. 4. THE KIDEMENT OF LOUVIETION, likewse, FURSIONATTO AIRS 200.364; 200.366 FAILS TO SEPERMINE WHETHER (1) IF SUBSTANTIAL Busily HARM TO THE Alletes VIETTIM RESULTED; ON (2) IF No SUBSTAN. TIAL Bosty HARM TO THE Alleties VITTIN WAS DESERVICES BY THE FEAL Retors.

5. THE TELMS OF THE RESTRICTION IMPOSED BY THE SENTENC INE Laver 15 Hor Lerleres IN The WRITTER Subsmant or Canvic TION. LESTITUTION EXPENSES FOR WITHOM, AUS TO WITHOM, SAIS EXPENSES ARE TO BE FAILS MUST BE STATES IN THE WEITHER LISTS MELT OF CONVICTION "ERICKSON Y. STATE" 107 Nov. 864, 821 A.21 1042 (1971) (RESTITUTION ONLY APPLIES TO Gauly VERSIETS BY JURY); GREENARDSV. Y. STATE," 112 NEV. 57, 915 P.2d 258 (1996). APPEllant HAD A July ALGUNTAL ON CAULT I; AND A HUNG SURY DU COUNT IT. Nover THE- 1005. The Case Introses Restruction on Counts I Ans I. L'olletinely, THESE GERORS ARE CRITICAL AND WARRANT AN Amerises prospert of Consistions. Bases Uprothe legal Analysis. THELE ARE TWO ESSENTIALS TO A VALIS JUSIMENT OF CONVETION, AND THE PROCESS OF COMMITMETAT ISSUED THE EDVI. (1) THE STATEMENT OF THE OFFENSE; ANS (2) THE STATE MENT SETUNE THE PUNSHMENT. Ex ARENE SEA, SUPRA." THIS Cant Has ofwers IN A PUBLISHED OPWON," LEDBETTER Y. STATE, " 122 Nev. 252, 129 P.3 671 ( Zach) THAT "THE WALTER Susament OF CONVICTION IS AN ESSENTIAL Samment IN A CRIMINAL PROLOSING Betause or Memocializes & Severisano's Conviction, His CRIME, AND The Terms of this Servere," Linne Calind Y. Stare," 121 P.3d 592, 597

(2005). The Recular Convents Ale Ser FORTH BY SARITE. MRS. 176.105. THE SUDEMENT OF CONVICTION IS Relies When by OTHER CANES lous Arres The Procesus Ale Closes IN The LISTERT Caver. THE Non Rehes Herry, by an AN OFFENDER'S JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION WHEN ASSESSIVE CLASSIFICATION PURPOSES, E.E. WHETHER ANI OFFENDER Please Country on Mor, luterter These was Substantial Halm, Send-MININE attender's MILIMUM PArile Charbing Betale The USBPLS. APAC MAINT Respectfully Lecuests THIS THIS HONINAS LE Lane Areamine The Lister Carles ABUSED ITS SISCHERTON IN Serious ARE MANT'S Norman To America Jus man of Conviction; AND WHETTER SIGNET LANET Committees Reversable Cherry by TREATING APACIANTS NATION IN THE COURSET OF A HABERS PETTING, AND A NODFICATION ON CALE CTION OF AN I MEDAL SAME, THE MATTER Strails be Remaises For The ISSUMCE OF AN AMERICES . MENT OF LOWIGTON FORTHUTH. THANK YOU

DATED this // day of DECEMBER, 2015.

Charles I make

Signature of Appellant

CHARLES J. NAKI

Print Name of Appellant