### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CHARLES JOSEPH MAKI,

No. 69049

Electronically Filed Jan 14 2016 10:30 a.m. Tracie K. Lindeman Clerk of Supreme Court

Appellant,

v.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

\_\_\_/

#### **RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF**

CHARLES JOSEPH MAKI #42820 Warm Springs Correctional Center P.O. Box 7007 Carson City, Nevada 89702

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS District Attorney

TERRENCE P. McCARTHY Chief Appellate Deputy P.O. Box 11130 Reno, Nevada 89520

APPELLANT, PRO-PER

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

#

NRS 176.565.	 	 	

### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CHARLES JOSEPH MAKI,

No. 69049

Appellant,

v.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

### **RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF**

### I. <u>STATEMENT OF THE CASE</u>

A review of the procedural history is made a bit difficult due to Appellant Maki's tendency to file pleadings that are not known to the law. Still, the State will give it a shot.

Maki was convicted of multiple crimes in 1994. Record on Appeal, Volume 3 (3 ROA) at 372-373. Unfortunately, when the judgment was reduced to writing, it was unduly lenient. The oral pronouncement of sentence called for each sentence to be consecutive to each other sentence, but when it was reduced to writing, each sentence was consecutive to count III, but not to each other sentence. At the oral pronouncement of sentence, the judge made it clear that the aggregate parole eligibility would be 80 years. *See* 3 ROA 432. The written judgment is more lenient, probably due to a scrivener's error. 3 AA 372.

Maki launched a series of attacks on his conviction. Those, in turn, resulted in a series of appeals. *See* various notices of appeal at 3 ROA 435; 4 ROA 684; 6 ROA 1024; 6 ROA 1127; 7 ROA 105<sup>1</sup>; 7 ROA 107; 7 ROA 112.

The instant appeal involves a motion captioned as "Defendant's Motion to Amend Judgment of 5/17/1994 to Comport With NRS 176.105." 6 ROA 1094. In that motion, Maki sought various forms of relief, including being relieved of the obligation to pay restitution. The district court denied the motion. The Order denying the motion makes it clear that the court is frustrated by Maki's inability to make sense. The Order recites that "to the extent" he is challenging his conviction, the petition is denied. 6 ROA 112. It goes on to say that "to the extent" that he wishes to modify his sentence, the motion is denied. *Id*. Maki now appeals, arguing that his motion meant something else entirely, although he still has the part about changing the restitution.

### II. <u>STATEMENT OF THE FACTS</u>

The underlying facts of this case involve the defendant's sexual abuse of two neighbor children. The trial transcript can be found at 4 ROA 461 through 663.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The State has no explanation for the page numbering provided by the clerk, or for the order in which documents are presented in the Record on Appeal.

#### III. <u>ARGUMENT</u>

Appellant's argument now seems to be that the court misconstrued his motion, and that he was really just trying to get clarification of the judgment, to include some things required by NRS 176.105<sup>2</sup>. The statute requires that various details be included in a judgment of conviction and this Court has enforced those requirements by remand on direct appeal. *See e.g. Ledbetter v. State*, 122 Nev. 252, 265, 129 P.3d 671 (2006). What is at issue now is whether that statute gives a private right, and, if so, whether that private right can be enforced by the instant motion, and, if so, whether the court has an obligation to decipher the motion to determine what the defendant is seeking.

The State acknowledges that the provision requiring that the judgment recite whether the conviction was by plea or by trial could probably be enforced by a motion to correct a clerical error, as described in NRS 176.565. That was not what Maki sought.

The Ninth Circuit has weighed in on the effect of Criminal Rule 32, which is very similar to NRS 176.105. The court held that the rules " prescribe a recital in the judgment of the several steps taken by the court during the progress of a case from the entry of a plea to the pronouncement of sentence.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Related issues, like whether the time for appeal or post-conviction relief would be re-started, are not directly at issue in this appeal but they might be a consideration for the Court.

Such a recital in the judgment would be *prima facie* evidence that the steps set forth therein actually took place, but it does not follow that a failure to make such a recital in the written judgment nullifies steps which did in fact occur." *Sanders v. Johnston*, 165 F.2d 736, 737 (9th Cir. 1948). *Accord Revuelta v. State*, 86 Nev. 224, 467 P.2d 105 (1970). That is, the failure to recite whether the conviction was by plea or by trial does not invalidate the judgment. Instead, if it becomes significant, the law allows that "recourse to all the records of the court may be had and where all legal essentials are thereby made to appear habeas corpus will not lie." *Sanders*, 165 F.2d at 737. So, to the extent that we are to take Maki literally, and assume that all he wants is to amend the judgment to recite that his convictions were by trial and not by plea, it appears that the law provides no such remedy to him.

If he was trying to get the district court to explain the various sentences in the written judgment, the failure to specify a minimum term (where only one sentence is allowable) does not render the sentence illegal nor does it implicate the jurisdiction of the district court. Therefore, Maki's claim fell outside the narrow scope of claims permissible in a motion to modify or correct an illegal sentence. *See Edwards v. State*, 112 Nev. 704, 708, 918 P.2d 321, 324 (1996).

If the claim is that the department of corrections is not construing his judgment correctly, that claim should be presented in the county where he is

4

confined. *See, e.g., Johnson v. Director, Dept. Of Prisons*, 105 Nev. 314, 774 P.2d 1047 (1989). If the claim is that the Court should modify the judgment in some way, that is beyond the scope of what is allowed by *Edwards, supra*. If the prisoner disagrees with the construction placed on the judgment by the warden, then a habeas petition, naming the confining officer, and filed in the county of confinement, would be the appropriate remedy.

The State notes that the only sentence at the time of the crime, for the crime of sexual assault upon a child (with no finding of harm) would be a sentence of life imprisonment with parole eligibility in ten years. If Maki is insisting that he must have the various consecutive terms specified by the district court in its oral pronouncement, the State does not object. If he is insisting on something else, he has used the wrong procedural vehicle in the wrong county.

The State notes that in general an appellant is required to present cogent arguments supporting his position. *See Maresca v. State*, 103 Nev. 669, 673, 748 P.2d 3, 6 (1987). Even if that duty does not apply equally in the district court, this Court need not undertake the burden of pleading for Maki. Instead, the Court should simply affirm the judgment for lack of a cogent argument demonstrating that Maki is entitled to some form of relief. It does not seem overly burdensome to require the appellant to explain what he wants and how he is prejudiced by not getting it. Indeed, other courts have recognized that a trial court need not consider a pleading that is "confused, ambiguous, vague, or otherwise unintelligible." *Salahuddin v. Cuomo*, 861 F.2d 40, 42 (2d Cir.1988). Here, except for the part where Maki complains that the judgment does not mention whether the conviction was by plea or by trial, the motion makes little sense. As there is no explanation of how Maki is aggrieved, and was no such explanation in the district court, the appeal should be dismissed.

## IV. CONCLUSION

Whatever the defendant was seeking in his motion, it was denied. DATED: January 14, 2016.

> CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS DISTRICT ATTORNEY